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STAFF MEMO 
Date: May 15, 2024 

To: Town of Milford Planning Board 

From: Terrence S. Dolan, Town Planner 

Subject:  Case SP#2024-07, Conditional Use Permit (CUP) Request, Commercial Solar Panel Array for Wilkins 
Lumber, located at @ 495 Mont Vernon Road (Map 2 Lot 30). 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

BACKGROUND: 
 

The applicant, Wilkins Lumber Company, has requested approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for its prior construction 
of an onsite 7,644 square foot Solar Panel Array. This commercial solar array is intended to provide supplemental electrical 
power supply to exclusively serve the needs of the existing onsite lumber yard facilities, located within the central portion of 
the existing active lumber yard. (Please refer to attached photos)  

The solar panel array is steel-framed “carport-styled” rack system (42’ x 182’), with the rows of solar panels (i.e. “modules”) 
mounted on top of a fixed (non-pivotable) frame-support system. 

The lot is located in the Residence “R” Zoning District, @ 495 Mont Vernon Road (Map 2 Lot 30). The overall lumber yard 
site is 9.0 acres in size. 

Pursuant to Section 7.11.0 “Solar Collection Systems” (Milford Zoning Ordinance), a “Condition Use Permit” (CUP) is 
required for any Commercial Solar Array within the Residence “R” Zoning District, pursuant to the Table requirements listed 
in Section 7.11.A (Table of Uses).  

The nearest edge of the array to any surrounding lot line is to the east, measuring +/-65’; however, the applicant is also the 
listed adjacent owner of the eastern and southern adjoining lot, Map 2 Lot 31. (See attached photos).   

According to the Wilkins Lumber Company website, the original lumber yard facilities started in 1808 along Hartshorn Brook, 
(western side of Route 13) with the Hartshorn family; then transitioning in ownership in 1957 to the Wilkins Family near the 
Mont Vernon Town Line. The lumber yard continued operations there until 1980 when the existing Wilkins Lumber Yard 
facility was created on the east side of Route 13. 

 

WAIVER REQUEST 

A Waiver has also been requested by the applicant to only provide specific (applicable) information for this solar panel array’s 
CUP.  

However, it is staff’s opinion that for the approval of the required Conditional Use Permit, under Article VII, Section 7.11 
(Solar Collection Systems), there is a provision under Section 7.11.5.B.3 (Standards of Review) where the specific 
requirements of the CUP submittal shall pre-empt any similar requirements of the Milford Development Regulations. Due to 
the uniqueness of a solar panel array, much of the typical Site Plan submission requirements are not applicable for review 
purposes. Therefore, staff is of the opinion that no Waiver Request is necessary for this CUP. 
 
APPLICATION STATUS: 
 
Pending the required CUP review and evaluation by the Planning Board, along with any necessary building permit follow-
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up with the Milford Building & Fire Departments, Eversource Energy will need to be contacted by the Milford Building 
Department to provide official authorization of their pending request to energize the (built) solar panel array for the 
applicant. 
 
NOTICES: 
 
Pursuant to the Milford Development Regulations for the Conditional Use Permit (CUP), a Legal Notification was required 
for the newspaper (Milford Cabinet), and Abutter Notifications were required and sent out on May 10, 2024.   
 
To date, no comments have been received by the Office of Community Development from the general public or any 
abutters. 
 
The only substantive Inter-Departmental Review (“IDR”) comments were provided from the Milford Fire Department, 
below: 
 
MILFORD FIRE DEPARTMENT COMMENTS: 
 
 Date: May 6, 2024 
Parcel: # 002-030-000-000 

Street Address: 495 Mont Vernon Rd 

Project Name: Wilkins Lumber Solar Array  

Review Type: Preliminary Conceptual Review  

Status: Reviewed, comments provided below:  

Comments: 
The Milford Fire Department has reviewed the provided documents for the Planning Board Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 
review. The following comments DO NOT constitute plans review for the issuance of a building permit and the limited 
information provided is not sufficient for a full fire and life safety code review of the proposed project. Upon application 
for a building permit, a full set of detailed, stamped plans must be submitted to the Fire Department for plans review. Any 
code requirements mentioned are subject to change upon receipt of new information related to the project. Where 
assumptions are made in this review, they assume the most restrictive conditions. 
 

1. The applicant must submit plans, specifications and details for the system and all components, showing that 
the system has been designed and installed in a manner compliant with NFPA 1, Fire Code, 2018 Edition and 
the 2020 edition of the National Electrical Code. 

 
2. An inspection by the fire department is required after the plans are reviewed. 

This concludes the review comments, please do not hesitate to contact the fire prevention office with any questions. 
Sincerely, 
Riley J. Stanchina, CFEI Deputy Chief 
Milford Fire Department 
 
 
ZONING DISTRICT/INFORMATION: 
 
The subject property is within the Residence “R” Zoning District, under Section 5.04.0 of the Milford Zoning Ordinance.  
“Acceptable Uses” within this Zoning District include solar panel arrays, pursuant to the requirement for obtaining a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP), per Section 5.04.2.B.2, and subsequent compliance with Section 7.11.0 of the Milford 
Zoning Ordinance. 
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UTILITY INFORMATION 
 
The existing lot is presently served by town water and sewer. Eversource Energy is the dedicated electrical source 
supplier for the Lot.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
The only recommendation offered by Staff is that all normally-required CUP Application fees & Building Permit fees 
are fully reconciled and paid in full, prior to the Town of Milford providing its final authorization to Eversource 
Energy.  
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